

HP Roam for Business - Set up and Use Guide

© Copyright 2021 HP Development Company, L.P.

December 2021

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice. The only warranties for HP products and services are set forth in the express warranty statements accompanying such products and services. Nothing herein should be construed as constituting an additional warranty. HP shall not be liable for technical or editorial errors or omissions contained herein.

Table of contents

1 Intro	oduction	1
2 HP F	Roam Requirements	3
3 Insta	all the HP Roam app on an Android or iOS	5
	Install the HP Roam App for Android	5
	Install the HP Roam App for iOS	7
4 Insta	all the HP Roam App for macOS or Windows	11
	Install the HP Roam App for macOS	11
	Install the HP Roam App for Windows	15
5 Prin	t from Android or iOS to the HP Roam cloud	17
6 Prin	t from macOS or Windows to the HP Roam cloud	33
7 Use	the HP Roam Embedded Printer App	35
	Enroll a badge to HP Roam	
	Authenticate to HP Roam at the printer control panel	40
	Print using the HP Roam Embedded Printer App	42
8 Trou	ıbleshooting FAQs	47
	My IT administrator said I was invited to use HP Roam but I have not received an invitation email	47
	Will the HP Roam Windows app work on Windows 8?	47
	Where do I get the HP Roam app?	47
	How do I print from my phone directly to an HP Roam-enabled printer?	47
	How long will a print job remain in the print queue?	
	How many print jobs can be in the queue at one time?	48
	How do I get my phone to automatically discover HP Roam-enabled printers?	
	Can I use the HP Roam Mobile App on an older Android or iOS phone?	48

"Location Services is not enabled" message in the HP Roam app	48
Why can't I get HP Roam to work with a printer?	. 48
I don't see "Send to HP Roam" in the list of printers on my iPhone or iOS	48
I don't see "Send to HP Roam" in the list of printers on my Mac	49
A guest user is unable to print to the HP Roam printer	49
The HP Roam mobile app can not find the printer	49
What is the maximum file size that can be sent via HP Roam	. 49
What tray selections and media types are available?	49
What if the HP Roam-enabled printer does not have the paper size in which my document is formatted	50
Can I print color documents on black & white printers and vice versa?	50
The print job did not automatically print	50
"Safari can't open the page" error message displayed when trying to submit print jobs using drag-and-drop	51
"Unable to set your password. An unknown error occurred." message when trying to create an Admin	
account	51

1 Introduction

HP Roam for Business (HP Roam) is a secure print solution that allows users to discover and print to HP Roamenabled printers from virtually anywhere using the cloud.

For information about privacy, security, and data protection, go to <u>http://www.hp.com/privacy</u>.

This document provides instructions for users that already have an HP Roam for Business account on how to install the HP Roam App and send print jobs to the cloud.

2 HP Roam Requirements

Use the following list to ensure that the HP Roam app and printer requirements are met before using the HP Roam solution in a business environment.

Printer requirements

• HP Roam is compatible with select HP LaserJet Pro, HP LaserJet Enterprise, HP LaserJet Managed, HP PageWide Enterprise, and HP PageWide Managed printers.

To view the list, go to the HP Roam for Business Compatibility matrix.

• HP Enterprise printers must be running HP FutureSmart firmware version 4.9 and newer.

For more information, go to the <u>Latest Firmware Versions</u>.

- Printers must have Bluetooth Low Energy (BLE) capability to print using the HP Roam App for Android and iOS. Go to the <u>HP Roam for Business compatibility matrix</u> for a list of printers supported by HP Roam and whether each has embedded BLE capability or requires a Bluetooth accessory to discover printers.
- Printers must have internet access with the following ports accessible through the firewall, if applicable:
 - Port 631 IPP/IPPS
 - Port 443 HTTP

HP Roam App for Android or iOS requirements

- Android 6.0 or newer
- iOS 11 or newer
- Bluetooth capability and Location services must be enabled on the phone or tablet.
- Android and iOS devices must allow notifications in order to receive HP Roam discovery prompts when nearby printers are detected.

HP Roam App for macOS requirements

• macOS High Sierra (10.13) and newer

HP Roam App for Windows requirements

- Windows 7 or Windows 10
- Windows platforms require .Net 4.6.1 installed on the client workstation
- Windows 10 on ARM CPU devices is not supported.

3 Install the HP Roam app on an Android or iOS

The HP Roam app allows a Bluetooth-enabled phone or tablet to send stored jobs directly to the HP Roam cloud and send print jobs from the cloud to an HP Roam-enabled printer.

To install the HP Roam mobile app, follow the steps for your operating system.

🖉 NOTE: An HP Roam user account is required to set up the HP Roam App for Android.

Install the HP Roam App for Android

- NOTE: Before you can begin using HP Roam, you will need to create an account. See the *Deployment Guide* or contact your system administrator.
 - 1. Make sure the phone or tablet is Android 6.0 or newer.
 - 2. Download and install the HP Roam app from <u>Google Play</u>.



3. Read the End User License Agreement and select the check box to confirm.

4. Click Sign In or Create Account.

🛾 TestFlight 📶 🗢	1:57 PM	100% 🔳
Welco	ome to HP Roa	am!
A secure cloud-ba from any d	sed service that e evice anywhere, a	nables printing anytime.
	0	
To start printing u	using HP Roam, si an HP account!	gn in or create
I confirm I ha	ve read and accep ement.	at the End User
Sign	In or Create Accou	nt.

5. Sign in with HP Roam for Business account credentials. If you don't already have an account, click **Don't** have an account? Sign up.

ati Verizon 🗢	1:58 PM	100%
Cancel	🔒 login.id.hp.com	C
	Ø	
	Sign in with your HP account	
You	are connecting to:	
HF	P Roam	
U	sername (Email)	
	NEXT	
	Remember me	
For	got your username or password?	
	Don't have an account? Sign up	
	Or sign in with:	
	Fi G 🧔	
	Priva	cy 📕
		Û

- 6. Select **Allow Location Access** if you would like the HP Roam app to discover nearby HP Roam-enabled printers.
- 7. If prompted, select Turn On Bluetooth.

Install the HP Roam App for iOS

To use HP Roam for iOS, install the HP Roam app and then set up the profile.

🖄 NOTE: An HP Roam user account is required to set up the HP Roam App for iOS.

- 1. Make sure the iPhone or iPad is running iOS 11 or newer.
- 2. Download and install the HP Roam app from the <u>Apple App Store</u>.



3. Read the End User License Agreement and select the check box to confirm.

NOTE: Bluetooth Low Energy (BLE) is used by the HP Roam App to discover HP Roam-enabled printers. To print, Bluetooth must be enabled. To wait until later to turn on Bluetooth after the installation, select **Skip**.

4. Click Sign In or Create Account.



5. Sign in using HP Roam account credentials.

🔐 Verizon 🗢	1:58 PM	100% 💻
Cancel	🔒 login.id.hp.com	C
	()	
S	ign in with your HP accoun	t
You an	e connecting to:	
HPI	Roam	
Use	rname (Email)	
	NEXT	
🗆 R	emember me	
Forgot	your username or password?	
(Don't have an account? Sign up	
	Or sign in with:	
	FA G 🧔	
	Pr	ivacy 📕
		Ċ

6. Follow the prompts to complete the installation.

a. Select Allow Location Access.

NOTE: Enabling Location Access allows the HP Roam app to detect when you are near an HP Roamenabled printer. HP recommends selecting **Always Allow**, but be advised that this setting could impact battery consumption.

b. Select Allow Notifications.

NOTE: Enabling Notifications allows the HP Roam app to notify you when you have jobs in your queue and are near an HP Roam-enabled printer.

c. Select Download Profile.

- NOTE: The HP Roam print profile must be downloaded to your iOS device to install it. The HP Roam print profile enables you to print natively from iOS apps.
- d. If prompted to "Let printers find you," select **Turn on Bluetooth**.
- e. Select Allow.
- f. When the Profile Downloaded screen displays, select **Close**.
- **g.** When the 'Quickly print from other apps' screen displays, select **OK** to complete the profile download.
- h. Select Open this page in HP Roam. The HP Roam app opens.
- 7. Before continuing with the HP Roam app installation process, minimize the HP Roam installer, and install the profile.
 - a. Open Settings and select General.
 - **b.** Select the HP Roam profile.
 - c. In the upper-right corner, select Install.
 - **d.** Type the device passcode.
 - e. Use the button (bottom-center) to select **Install**.
 - f. Select Done.
 - g. Close Settings and return to the HP Roam installer screen.
- 8. On the Quickly print from other apps screen, select OK.
- 9. Print a test page.
 - a. Select Print Test Page.
 - **b.** On the Printer Options screen in the upper-right corner, select **Print**.
 - c. Select Finish.

4 Install the HP Roam App for macOS or Windows

The HP Roam app allows a Bluetooth-enabled laptop to send stored jobs directly to the HP Roam cloud and send print jobs to the printer.

To install the HP Roam mobile app, follow the steps for your operating system.

Install the HP Roam App for macOS

To use HP Roam for macOS, install the HP Roam print driver. To install the HP Roam for macOS print driver, follow these steps:

WOTE: The HP Roam installer for Mac will install only the HP Roam print driver.

- 1. Make sure the macOS version is 11 or newer.
- 2. Download the HP Roam for macOS installer.
 - a. Go to <u>HP Roam software</u>.

NOTE: To manually navigate to the file, go to <u>hp.com/support</u>, search for **HP Roam**, and select **Software**, **Drivers & Firmware**.

- **b.** Locate the installer file and click **Download**.
- c. Click Save as to save the file to the Mac.
- 3. Launch the HP Roam for macOS installer.

4. Read the End User License Agreement and select the check box to confirm.



5. Click Sign in or Create Account and sign in using HP Roam account credentials.

- 6. Type an AirPrint passcode to be associated with HP Roam and click **Next**.
 - NOTE: If you have previously installed HP Roam on an iOS device, use the same passcode that you used to install the HP Roam print profile.

•••	HP Roam
	Secure Your Account
If this please o Roam. (is your first AirPrint setup for HP Roam, create a new passcode associated with HP Otherwise enter the same passcode used with your other Apple devices.
	Enter passcode
	Next

7. Wait for the installation to complete and when finished, click **Done**.

8. Open Printers and Scanners.

•••	<>)	System P	references		Q, Se	arch
General	Desktop & Screen Saver	Dock	Mission Control	Language & Region	Security & Privacy	Q Spotlight	Notifications
Displays	Energy Saver	Keyboard	Mouse	Trackpac	Printers & Scanners	Sound	
iCloud	(Q) Internet Accounts	Extensions	Network	Bluetooth	Sharing		
Users & Groups Ø	Parental Controls	App Store	Dictation & Speech	Date & Time	Startup Disk	Time Machine	Accessibility

9. Make sure **Send to HP Roam** is listed as an available printer.

Printers			
Send to HP Roam		Send to HP Roam	
• Idle		Open Print Que	Je
	*	Options & Suppli	es
	Location:	https://www.roamprint	.com
	Kind:	Roam Print-AirPrint	
	Status:	Idle	
	Share this printe	er on the network	Sharing Preferences
• -	Default printer:	Last Printer Used	
	bordant printeri	EdotTinitor oood	

You can now print to **Send to HP Roam** from any macOS application.

Install the HP Roam App for Windows

The HP Roam installer for Windows will install both the HP Roam app and the print driver. To install the HP Roam for Windows app and print driver, follow these steps:

NOTE: The HP Roam printer is the default printer during installation. Windows might change this default printer based on the 'Let Windows manage my default printer' setting.

- 1. Make sure the following system requirements are met:
 - Windows 7 or Windows 10
 - .Net 4.6.1 or newer
- 2. Download the HP Roam Windows Driver.
 - a. Go to <u>HP Roam software</u>.

NOTE: To manually navigate to the file, go to <u>hp.com/support</u>, search for **HP Roam**, and select **Software**, **Drivers & Firmware**.

- **b.** Locate the driver file and click **Download**.
- c. Click Save as to save the .exe file to the PC.
- 3. Run the .exe installer as an admin.
 - a. Double-click RoamInstaller.exe to launch the installation process.
 - b. Read the End User License Agreement and select the check box to confirm.
 - c. To set HP Roam as the default printer, click **Installation settings**.
 - d. Click Install.

When completed, there is no confirmation message. The app will be visible on the workstation from the programs menu.

5 Print from Android or iOS to the HP Roam cloud

To send print jobs from a phone or tablet to an HP printer or the HP Roam cloud using HP Roam, follow these steps:

IMPORTANT: To use these steps, you must have an HP Roam for Business account.

Send print jobs from an Android

NOTE: Some applications may not have a Print selection on the first level and might require navigating to Share & Export > Print.

- 1. Open a document or page to print.
- 2. Send a print job from the application to the HP Roam cloud. The following example uses Adobe.
 - **a.** Select the menu icon : in the upper right corner of the display.

🕅 NOTE: Depending on the application, you might need to select the share icon





b. Select Print.

÷	Ð		Q	<	:
				N	1
Welcom	ne t	0			
Welcome PDF • 3:23 PM					
Comment List					>
Contents					>
Thumbnails					>
Add Bookmark					
Export PDF					
🖆 Organize Pages					
Combine Files					
	nt Cloud	ł			
🖶 Print					
•	۲				

c. Select Send to HP Roam.



- d. Select the Print icon 🙃.
 - NOTE: This will save the print job to the HP Roam cloud. When the upload is complete, you will receive a notification that the job is available to print.



- 3. To print the job now, select the HP Roam notification or open the HP Roam app.
 - NOTE: When you open the HP Roam app, you will see the stored print job. You can also print the stored job later from either the HP Roam app or directly from the printer control panel.

4. Select **Find Printer** to discover nearby HP Roam-enabled printers.

4:20 Ö O G	♥∡ 🔒 64%
HP Roam	1
	+ File
My HP Roam Queue	Deselect All
Welcome.pdf US Letter, Color, 1-Sided	•
Find a nearby printer	
Find Printer	
1	

5. Select the printer.





6. Confirm the print job is selected and click **Send to Printer**.

4.21 B C O HP Roam	⊙ ▼∡l ≧ 64% :
My HP Roam Queue	+ File Deselect All
Welcome.pdf US Letter, Color, 1-Sided	0
-	Change Printer
HP Color LaserJet FlowMFP M577 Send to Printer	
۰ ۵	

Send print jobs from an iPhone or iOS device

NOTE: These steps will vary depending on the application from which the document is being printed.

- 1. Open a document or page to print.
- 2. Send a print job from the application to the HP Roam cloud. The following example uses Adobe.
 - **a.** Open the menu **...** in the upper right corner of the display.





b. Select Print or the Print icon 🖶 .



c. Open the Select Printer menu.



- d. Select the **send-to-hp-roam** printer.
 - NOTE: If you are not sure whether it is the correct printer, select **Identify** to display an identification prompt on the printer control panel.

atl Verizon 🗢	4:41 PM	🕈 97% 🖿
C Printer Option	s Printer	
send-to-hp Roam Print	-roam	₽ ()

e. Sign in using HP Roam AirPrint credentials.



Veria	zon 🗢 hter Op	tions	4:42 PM Printe	4 r		v 97	* =
5	send-to	-hp-ro	am			100	()
	Pass	sword to	require -hp-roa	d for am"	"send	-	
	pass	nanse word				3	
	c	ancel		c	ж		
q	we	r	t y	/ u	i	0	р
а	s	d f	g	h	j	k [
ŵ	z	xc	: v	b	n	m	\otimes
123	•	₽	spa	ice		retu	nu

f. Select Print.

NOTE: This will save the print job to the HP Roam cloud. When the upload is complete, you will receive a notification that the job is available to print.

4:43 PM	🕈 97% 🔳
Printer Options	Print
send-to-l	np-roam >
C	- +
Double-s	ided, Color
Welcome to Document Cloud Her as to torug an exit. Also that and Adde Document Dod Innotes ***********************************	OI Provident Sector Sec
	Printer Options send-to-1 C Double-s Double-s Welcome to DoubleAutor Welcome to DoubleAutor Sender S

- 3. To print the job now, select the HP Roam notification or open the HP Roam app.
 - **NOTE:** You can also print the stored job later from either the HP Roam app or directly from the printer control panel.
- 4. Wait for the list of print jobs to display.

5. Select Find Printer to discover nearby HP Roam-enabled printers.

i l Verizon 🗢	9:13 AM	1 82% 🔲)
	HP Roam	
		+File
My HP Roam Que	ue	Deselect All
Well US LO	come.pdf etter, Color, 2-Sided	0
US LO	come.pdf etter, Color, 1-Sided	0
Would yo	u like to quickly print from of Start the setup now	her apps?
Fi	nd a nearby print	er



- 6. Select the printer.
 - **NOTE:** If you are not sure whether it is the correct printer, select **Identify** to display an identification prompt on the printer control panel.

Verizon 🖘	9:13 AM Private Printers	17 81% -
*	HP Color La77 HP Color LaselowMFP M57 Color/2-Sided	7 ①

- 7. Make sure it is the correct printer and then select **Select Printer**.
 - NOTE: If you are not sure whether it is the correct printer, use the Information icon to view the printer details before selecting it. To trigger an identification prompt to display on the printer control panel, select **Identify**.

🔐 Verizon 🗢	9:13 AM	17 81% 🔲)
K HP Color	LaserJet FlowM	FP M577
	Identify	1
The printer will s	ignal its location by sound	or flashing light
HP Color	LaserJet FlowMF	P M577

Printer Capabilities:

Paper

US Letter, US Legal, Executive, Statement, Foolscap, 3 x 5, 4 x 6, 5 x 7, 5 x 8, A4, A5, A6, ISO RA4, JIS B5, JIS B6, 100 x 150mm, 195 x 270mm, 184 x 260mm, ROC 16k, Hagaki, Oufuku Reply Postcard, Envelope #9, Envelope #10, Envelope Monarch, Envelope B5, CEnvelope 5, CEnvelope 6, Envelope DL, 8.5 x 13.4

Color

Solort Printer
Server Franker

8. Click Send to Printer.



6 Print from macOS or Windows to the HP Roam cloud

To send print jobs from a macOS or Windows laptop to the HP Roam cloud using HP Roam for Business, follow these steps:

IMPORTANT: To use these steps, you must have an HP Roam for Business account.

Send print jobs from macOS

- 1. Open a document or page to print.
- 2. Select Print.
- 3. Select the Send to HP Roam printer.

Release (print) the job from the HP Roam cloud using one of the following methods:

- HP Roam App for Android
- HP Roam App for iOS
- HP Roam Embedded Printer App

Send print jobs from Windows

NOTE: The first time you try to print in Windows using HP Roam, you will be prompted to enter your credentials by launching HP Roam from the programs menu. Select the check box **Keep me signed in** to avoid future login prompts.

- 1. Open a document or page to print.
- 2. Select Print.
- 3. Select the HP Roam printer.
- 4. Select Print.
- NOTE: This will save the print job to the HP Roam cloud. When the upload is complete, you will receive a notification that the job is available to print.

Release (print) the job from the HP Roam cloud using one of the following methods:

- HP Roam App for Android
- HP Roam App for iOS
- HP Roam Embedded Printer App

7 Use the HP Roam Embedded Printer App

If a badge reader has been installed on a Roam-enabled printer, you can release (print) jobs from the printer control panel by swiping your enrolled badge. Otherwise, you can manually sign in to Roam to release jobs from the printer control panel.

Enroll a badge to HP Roam

If the printer administrator has attached an HP Proximity Card Reader X3D03A to the printer and enabled it for use with HP Roam, you can authenticate to Roam by swiping your badge instead of manually typing in your Roam credentials. The credentials must be manually entered once at the printer to associate them with the badge.

1. On the printer control panel, select the HP Roam button to open the HP Roam Embedded Printer App.

Figure 7-1 HP Roam button on the printer control panel

	Ø	Reset	Sign In	0	3:09 AM
G			HP Roam	Copy Scan	
				1	🔿 Сору

2. Follow the on-screen instructions and swipe the proximity badge across the proximity card reader.

Figure 7-2 HP Roam sign in screen

🔓 HP Roam	0
To sign in, touch your badge to the printer's badge reader.	
Badge reader is ready	Sign in manually

3. If the badge is not yet registered, a message that the badge is not registered appears on the screen. Select OK to dismiss the message.

	🔓 HP Roam	0
G	To sign in, touch your badge to the printer's ba The badge is not registered. Save the badge and login with HPID to complete badge registration. This will replace all your previous badge registrations.	
	Save badge	Sign in manually

Figure 7-3 The badge is not registered message in HP Roam

- NOTE: The Save badge option in the lower left corner is selected by default. If you encountered an issue during the badge swipe and you do not want to associate the new badge number with your account, clear the Save badge check box so the badge number is not retained.
- 4. To register the swiped badge to your HP Roam user account, select Sign in manually.

Figure 7-4 Select Sign in manually to register a swiped badge to a Roam account

	🔓 HP Roam	0
	To sign in, touch your badge to the printer's badge reader.	
Ġ	≗ ≡	
	Save badge	Sign in manually

5. Sign in to HP Roam with the HP ID credentials to register to the badge.

Figure 7-5 Log in to HP Roam manually from the printer control panel

🔒 HP Login		0
	Sign in with your HP account	
۵	You are connecting to: HP Roam	
	Usemame (Email) NEXT	
	Forgot your username or password? Don't have an account?	

6. When the credentials are entered and accepted, the HP Roam Embedded Printer App displays a message that the badge was successfully activated. Select OK to dismiss the message.



Figure 7-6 The badge was successfully activated message in HP Roam

The app displays your list of available HP Roam print jobs.

In the following example, the list of print jobs is empty.

```
Figure 7-7 List of available Roam print jobs
```

🔒 HP Roam			?
Select all	Job history 🔊		
Print to HP Re documents to	aam to add your queue	Select a document to preview	
\bigcirc			

Authenticate to HP Roam at the printer control panel

After you enroll your badge, you can authenticate at any time to the HP Roam by swiping the badge. If you do not have a badge, you can sign in to HP Roam manually.

1. On the printer control panel, select the HP Roam button to open the HP Roam Embedded Printer App.

0	Reset	Sign In		0	3:09 AM
		HP Roam	Copy	Scan	
			Print Fax		
			— — —		
				1	🔷 Сору
	6	Contraction Reset	Reset Sign In	Reset Sign In	Reset Sign In

Figure 7-8 HP Roam button on the printer control panel

2. If you do not have a badge, select Sign in manually.

Figure 7-9 Sign in manually to HP Roam

🔒 HP Roam	0
To sign in, touch your badge to the printer's badge reader.	
≗=	
Badge reader is ready	Sign in manually

3. Sign in to HP Roam using your HP ID credentials.

Figure 7-10 Log in to HP Roam manually from the printer control panel

🔒 HP Login		0
	Sign in with your HP account	
۵	You are connecting to: HP Roam	
	Username (Email)	
	Forgot your username or password? Don't have an account?	

Print using the HP Roam Embedded Printer App

After signing in manually to HP Roam or using a proximity badge, HP Roam displays a list of your print jobs. You can release any available print jobs you have previously submitted.

1. If you view your print job list immediately after submitting a job, you can see the job being posted to the job queue.

🔒 HP Roam		0
Select all	Job history 🕥	
test1.pdf Preparing		Select a document to preview
٢		
٢		

Figure 7-11 Print job in the process of posting to the queue

2. When a job is available for printing, it is selected by default. The number of pages in the job appears. If multiple jobs are in the queue and available for printing, they are all selected by default.

	🔓 HP Roam		0
	Select all	Job history 🔊	
â	Etest1.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy A File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided	unless changed	
			1 copy , 2-Sided, Black/White 📎
	٢		1 document 🔷 Print

Figure 7-12 Job available for printing in the queue



 Select all Job history test1.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy test3.pdf		HP Roam		0
 test1.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy A pages, 1 copy A bages, 1 copy	0	Select all	Job history 🔊	
 test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided untess changed test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided untess changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided untess changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided untess changed d documents 	\bigcirc	test1.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy		
 test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy 4 pages, 1 copy test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy 4 documents 	🥏	test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided (unless changed	
test3.pdf 1 copy , 2-Sided, Black/White 4 pages, 1 copy A File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed 4 documents 4 documents Print	📀	test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided (unless changed	
4 documents 🔶 Print	✓ File	test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided (unless changed	1 copy , 2-Sided, Black/White 🕥
	C)		4 documents OPrint

3. To specify different job options, select the arrow under the job preview image on the right side of the control panel screen.

🔓 HP Roam		0
Select all	Job history 🔊	
est1.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy		
test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy	te, 2-Sided unless changed	
test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White	te, 2-Sided unless changed	
test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White A File Will p	te, 2-Sided unless changed	1 copy , 2-Sided, Black/White
\bigcirc		4 documents 🔿 Print

Figure 7-14 Select the arrow to view different job options for a print job

4. Adjust options for the print job, such as the number of copies, 1-sided or 2-sided printing, and printing in color or black and white on color printers. On monochrome printers, the Color option is not available. When finished, select Done.





5. Select Print to release the selected job for printing.

Figure 7-16 Select Print to release the job for printing

 Select all Job history S test1.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed 	🔒 HP Roam	
 test1.pdf 4 pages.1 copy test2.pdf 2 pages.1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test4.pdf 4 pages.1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed 	Select all Job	history 🕥
 test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed 	est1.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy	
 ✓ test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy ▲ File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed ✓ test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy ▲ File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed 	test2.pdf 2 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless	changed
test3.pdf 1 copy , 2-Sided, Black/White 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless changed	test4.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy A File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless	changed
	 test3.pdf 4 pages, 1 copy File will print as: Black/White, 2-Sided unless 	1 copy , 2-Sided, Black/White 🔊
4 documents	\bigcirc	4 documents

6. When the print job is sent to the printer, a message stating the job is in the print queue appears.

Figure 7-17 A released print job is in the print queue

	🔓 нр				L ()
	Select	all	Job history 🕑		
	O test1.p 4 page	odf s, 1 copy			
٦		Product identified Hello User1, your p	rint job is in the p	print queu	ue!
					1 copy , 2-Sided, Black/White 🕥
	0				1 document 🚺 Print

8 Troubleshooting FAQs

Use the following FAQs as a guide to help troubleshoot any issues encountered when using HP Roam for Business.

My IT administrator said I was invited to use HP Roam but I have not received an invitation email

HP Roam emails might take several minutes to arrive in the inbox. Please make sure emails have not been routed to junk or spam folders.

Will the HP Roam Windows app work on Windows 8?

No. The HP Roam Windows App is supported only in Windows 7 or Windows 10.

Where do I get the HP Roam app?

Download and install the HP Roam app from one of the following sites:

- <u>Apple App Store</u>
- <u>Google Play</u>
- HP Roam software for Windows and macOS

How do I print from my phone directly to an HP Roam-enabled printer?

For instructions on installing the HP Roam App on your phone or tablet, see the section *Install the HP Roam app* on an Android or iOS.

After installing the HP Roam App (iOS users also need to install the HP Roam Printer Profile) and logging into your HP Roam account, you can print from many apps by selecting Print from either the Share menu or the extended menu (...) in the upper-left corner of the app.

From the print screen, select "Send to HP Roam" as the destination printer and then hit print.

After submitting jobs to your HP Roam queue, you can view submitted jobs using the HP Roam web portal (<u>www.roamprint.com</u>) and the HP Roam Mobile App for iOS or Android.

How long will a print job remain in the print queue?

Print jobs will remain in the print queue for 72 hours.

How many print jobs can be in the queue at one time?

There is no fixed limit to the number of jobs that can be in the print queue but stored jobs will be purged from the queue after 72 hours.

How do I get my phone to automatically discover HP Roam-enabled printers?

If you want your phone to automatically discover nearby HP Roam-enabled, make sure the following criteria are met:

- The HP Roam App (for iOS or Android) is installed
- Notifications are allowed from HP Roam (see Settings)
- Bluetooth is enabled on the Android device
- Location services for HP Roam is enabled on the phone or tablet
- Make sure that you are added as User to the account or that the printer is allowed to received print jobs from guests

Can I use the HP Roam Mobile App on an older Android or iOS phone?

The HP Roam Mobile App requires Android 6.0 or newer and iOS 11 or newer.

"Location Services is not enabled" message in the HP Roam app

When you have print jobs stored in the HP Roam cloud queue, the HP Roam Mobile App uses Location Services to determine when you are near a printer capable of printing those jobs. When you are within range of the printer's Bluetooth Low Energy (BLE) beacon, the HP Roam will present a notification message. Clicking the notification will open the HP Roam App where you can release the job.

- 1. Follow the HP Roam prompts to enable Location Services, or
- 2. Open App info for the HP Roam App and select Permissions.
- **3.** Within App permissions, enable **Location**.

Why can't I get HP Roam to work with a printer?

Check the <u>HP Roam for Business compatibility matrix</u> to confirm the printer is supported with HP Roam.

I don't see "Send to HP Roam" in the list of printers on my iPhone or iOS

Make sure the profile has been added. See section Install the HP Roam App for iOS.

I don't see "Send to HP Roam" in the list of printers on my Mac

See section Install the HP Roam App for macOS.

A guest user is unable to print to the HP Roam printer

Guest printing enables individuals with HP Roam user accounts that are not a member of your HP Roam site to print stored jobs to your HP Roam-enabled printer. Guest printing is enabled by default but can easily be disabled or re-enabled from the HP Roam Web Portal.

If local users can print, but guest users cannot, check if Guest access is enabled for that printer in the HP Roam Web Portal. See the section *Enable Guest access to an HP Roam printer*.

The HP Roam mobile app can not find the printer

- 1. Make sure Bluetooth is enabled on the phone or tablet.
- 2. Make sure the Bluetooth Low Energy (BLE) setting is enabled on the **General Security** tab in the Embedded Web Server (EWS).
- 3. Make sure Web Services is enabled on the **HP Web Services** tab in the EWS and that the printer has an ePrint email address assigned.
- 4. Make sure the proxy is enabled and the setting is configured correctly on the **HP Web Services** tab in the EWS.
- 5. Make sure the printer's ePrint email address is configured correctly in the HP Roam Admin settings.
- 6. Make sure the printer can print using the ePrint email address.

WOTE: To test printing from the WPP Cloud, email a PDF document to the printer's ePrint email address.

- 7. If the job does not print, make sure the printer is online, that you have permission to use the printer, and that the file size does not exceed 10MB.
- 8. If you still can't print, ask your HP Roam site administrator to make sure the printer has been added to the HP Roam Web portal.

What is the maximum file size that can be sent via HP Roam

80Mb from the HP Roam App for Android or iOS

400Mb from Windows or macOS

What tray selections and media types are available?

Android/iOS: 11x17, Executive, US Legal, US Letter, and Statement

macOS/Windows: Letter and A4

What if the HP Roam-enabled printer does not have the paper size in which my document is formatted

The document will be scaled to fit a paper size supported by the printer.

Can I print color documents on black & white printers and vice versa?

HP Roam will release color documents to monochrome printers but the print job will be printed in black & white or grayscale. Likewise, HP Roam will release monochrome documents to color printers. You can also select to print color documents in monochrome on color printers.

The print job did not automatically print

After you select the Print icon, the print job is saved to the HP Roam cloud. When the upload is complete, you will receive a notification that the job is available to print.

"Safari can't open the page" error message displayed when trying to submit print jobs using drag-and-drop

This error is received when trying to submit print jobs using the drag-and-drop method on the HP Roam web portal in a Safari browser.

Drag-and-drop print job submission does not work in Safari. Safari users can submit print jobs by clicking the "+" icon and browsing to upload the file.

"Unable to set your password. An unknown error occurred." message when trying to create an Admin account

The email address has already been used. HP Roam will not allow re-use of the same email address. This can happen if you attempt to activate an already-activated account by clicking the link in the activation email.